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HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION 

NOVEMBER 21, 2016 
DEMOLITION AND RELOCATION PERMITS 

HDP-2016-0799 
2506 GREAT OAKS PARKWAY 

 
PROPOSAL 

Demolish a ca. 1958 house. 
 
ARCHITECTURE 

One-story, side-gabled mid-century Modern-styled brick house with flared eaves at the side 
gables, a prominent brick chimney, and casement windows with transoms. 
RESEARCH 

There is a 1953 building permit for this address, but this house does not appear to have 
been built at that time.  There is no listing in the city directories prior to the edition of 
1959, which shows E. Wayne and Mary R. Hall as the owners and occupants of this house.  
The style of this house more accurately reflects design principles of the late 1950s with the 
flared eaves, the long, low composition, the prominent brick chimney, and the casement 
windows with transoms, all of which define mid-century Modern design principles. 
E. Wayne Hall was a field representative for the Associated General Contractors, who then 
became the assistant manager, manager, and finally executive director of the organization. 
STAFF COMMENTS 

The house is beyond the bounds of any City survey. 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Encourage rehabilitation and adaptive re-use, but release the permit upon completion of a 
City of Austin Documentation Package, consisting of photographs of all elevations, a 
dimensioned sketch plan, and a narrative history, for archiving at the Austin History 
Center.  The house, while a very good example of the mid-century Modern design ethic, 
does not have the requisite historical significance for designation as a historic landmark. 
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LOCATION MAP 
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2506 Great Oaks Parkway 
ca. 1958 

 
 

OCCUPANCY HISTORY 
2506 Great Oaks Parkway 

 
City Directory Research, Austin History Center 
By City Historic Preservation Office 
October, 2016 
 
1992  E. Wayne and Mary R. Hall, owners 
  No occupation listed 
 
1985-86 E. Wayne and Mary R. Hall, owners 

Executive directory, Associate General Contractors, 609 S. Lamar Boulevard. 
 
1981  E. Wayne and Mary R. Hall, owners 

Executive director, Associated General Contractors, 609 S. Lamar Boulevard. 
 
1977  E. Wayne and Mary R. Hall, owners 

Executive director, Associated General Contractors, 704 Perry-Brooks Building, 
121 E. 8th Street. 

 
1973  E. Wayne and Mary R. Hall, owners 

Manager, Associated General Contractors, 1202 Perry-Brooks Building, 121 E. 
8th Street. 
Also listed is Duncan W. Hall, an accounting clerk at the State Comptroller’s 
Office. 

 
1968  E. Wayne and Mary R. Hall, owners 
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Manager, Associated General Contractors, 1202 Perry-Brooks Building, 121 E. 
8th Street. 

 
1965  E. Wayne and Mary R. Hall, owners 

Assistant manager, Associated General Contractors, 609 S. Lamar Boulevard. 
 

1961  E. Wayne and Mary R. Hall, owners 
  Field rep, Associated General Contractors, 609 S. Lamar Boulevard. 
 
1959  E. Wayne and Mary R. Hall, owners 
  Field rep, Associated General Contractors, 609 S. Lamar Boulevard. 
 
1958  The street is not listed in the directory. 
  NOTE:  E. Wayne and Mary R. Hall are not listed in the directory. 
 
NOTE:  T. Eugene and Dorothy Wood, the owners of the property on the 1953 building permit, 
according to the 1953 city directory, lived at 1034 E. 44th Street.  He was the manager of the 
Capital Memorial Gardens cemetery.  The 1954 San Angelo, Texas city directory shows T. 
Eugene and Dorothy Wood living in Austin, but with their business, Dunwood Service, Inc., a 
book-keeping service, in San Angelo. 
 
 
BIOGRAPHICAL NOTES: 
Emory Wayne and Mary Marshall Root Hall (ca. 1958 - ) 
The 1940 U.S. Census shows Emory W[ayne]. Hall as the 15-year old son of Seidel S. and 
Adele Hall, who rented an apartment at 104½ Laurel Lane in Austin.  Emory W. Hall was born in 
Texas.  His father, Seidel S. Hall, 47, had been born in Texas, and was a salesman for a 
wholesale oil company.  His mother, Adele Hall, 47, had been born in Texas, and had no 
occupation listed.  Emory had an older brother, Seidel Hall, Jr., 18, who had been born in 
Texas, and was a service attendant at a filling station. 
 

 
Death notice for Mary R. Hall 

Austin American-Statesman, December 4, 2003 
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Obituary of Mary R. Hall 

Austin American-Statesman, December 5, 2003 
 

 
 
E. Wayne Hall.  E. Wayne Hall passed away August 13, 2012 at the age of 88. 
He was born August 9, 1924 in San Antonio to Seidel S. and Mary Adele Hall. 
A longtime Austin resident, Wayne graduated from Austin High School in 1941 
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and went on to attend the University of Texas where he was a member of Phi Kappa Sigma. 
Like so many young men of that generation, the college years were interrupted by his country's 
call to military service in 1942. Wayne served in the Air Force until 1945 at which time he 
returned to UT to finish his degree in Business Administration in 1948. He went on to do 
graduate studies at Boston University. It was in Boston that he met the love of his life, Mary 
Root. They married May 20, 1950 in York, PA and relocated back to Texas where they 
remained happily married for the next 53 years until Mary's death in 2003. Their first stop in 
Texas was Corpus Christi where Wayne went to work for Texaco for the next 8 years. In 1958, 
he moved back to Austin where he began what would become a 30 year career for Associated 
General Contractors. He initially went to work for the Texas Highway branch of AGC as a Field 
Representative and Safety Director, before being promoted to Assistant Secretary. In 1966, he 
transferred to the Houston AGC Building Chapter to open a Legislative Office in Austin. Wayne 
became the Executive Director of the Texas Building Branch AGC with its establishment in 
1974, serving in that role until his retirement in 1988. It was under Wayne's leadership that the 
Texas Building Branch AGC began influencing legislative issues for the twelve Texas AGC 
Building Chapters. He also was active at the national level of AGC of America, serving on the 
executive committee of the Executive Leadership Council, which is comprised of the nation's 
executive AGC staff personnel. Wayne was a longtime member of Tarrytown United Methodist 
Church, where he was active in church affairs including having served as Chairman of the 
Administrative Board. For years he was a member of Austin County Club where he pursued his 
passion for golf, playing weekly with friends. Lesser known hobbies included a talent for 
woodworking and an artistic side that was expressed through water color painting. Wayne was a 
gentleman of great character and integrity who will be missed by all those whose lives he 
touched. In addition to his wife Mary, he was preceded in death by his mother and father, 
brother Ike, sisters-in-law Ceocia Hall and Frances Shorb, and brothers-in-law Benjamin Root 
and John Root. He is survived by his children, Duncan W. Hall of Denton, Julie Pierro of Austin, 
Alan Hall and wife Chris of Brea, CA, and Richard F. Hall and wife Jocelyn of Washington D.C. 
Also surviving are grandchildren Lauren Timberlake, Brandon Timberlake and wife Emily, 
Katherine Goldberg and husband John, Allison Hall, Stephen Hall, Miranda Hall, Christian Hall 
and Nathan Hall; great-grandchildren Courtney Goldberg and Brady Timberlake. The family 
wishes to thank the administration and staff of Westminster Manor for the warmth and kindness 
shown towards Wayne during his 8 years as a resident. Additionally, we would like to express 
our heartfelt appreciation for the gracious loving care provided to Wayne over the last month by 
the staffs of Westminster's Arbour Health Care Center and Buckner Hospice. A memorial 
service will be held at 11:00 a.m. on Friday, August 17th at Tarrytown United Methodist Church, 
2601 Exposition Blvd. followed by a reception at the church. A separate graveside service will 
be held privately for the family. In lieu of flowers, the family requests memorial donations be 
made to Tarrytown United Methodist Church Memorial Fund, 2601 Exposition Blvd., Austin, TX 
78703. 

Obituary of E. Wayne Hall 
Austin American-Statesman, August 15, 2012 

 
 
 

http://www.legacy.com/memorial-sites/university-of-texas/?personid=159183711&affiliateID=844
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Building permit to T. Eugene Wood for the construction of this house (1953) 

 

 
Water service permit to Andrew S. Patton for this address (1953) 

 
 

 


